
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

       BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 3, 2022 

On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-25-20, which enhances 
State and Local Governments’ ability to respond to COVID-19 Pandemic based on 
Guidance for Gatherings issued by the California Department of Public Health. The 
Executive Order specifically allows local legislative bodies to hold meetings via 
teleconference and to make meetings accessible electronically, in order to protect public 
health, which was due to end on September 30, 2021 (Exec. Ord. N-08-21). However, the 
Legislature passed AB 361 which provides local agencies with the ability to meet remotely 
during proclaimed state emergencies under modified Brown Act requirements, similar in 
many ways to the rules and procedures established by the Governor’s previous Executive 
Orders. - In light of this – the November 3, 2022 meeting of the LGVSD Board will be held 
via Zoom electronic meeting*. There will be NO physical location of the meeting. Due to 
the current circumstances, there may be limited opportunity to provide verbal comments 
during the meeting. Persons who wish to address the Board for public comment or on an 
item on the agenda are encouraged, but not required, to submit comments in writing to 
(tlerch@lgvsd.org ) by 5:00 pm on Wednesday, November 2, 2022. In addition, Persons 
wishing to address the Board verbally must contact the Board Secretary, by email 
(tlerch@lgvsd.org) and provide their Name; Address; Tel. No.; and the Item they wish to 
address by the same date and time deadline for submission of written comments, as 
indicated above.  Please keep in mind that any public comments must be limited to 3 
minutes due to time constraints.  Any written  comments will be distributed to the LGVSD 
Board before the meeting. 
*Prior to the meeting, participants should download the  Zoom app at: 
https://zoom.us/download. 
 

     REMOTE CONFERENCING ONLY 
Join Zoom Meeting online at:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88032973641 

OR 
By teleconference at: +16699009128   Meeting ID: 880 3297 3641  

 
 

1

mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
https://zoom.us/download
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88032973641


November 3, 2022 Page 2 of 4 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

NOTE:  Final board action may be taken on any matter appearing on agenda 

 

 
OPEN SESSION: 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

 
A. Approve the Board Minutes for October 20, 2022 

B. Approve the Warrant List for November 3, 2022 

C. Approve Murray attendng the CSDA meeting The CPRA and Brown Act on Novem                                                    
ber 15 

D. Approve Murray attending the CSDA Webinar Special Districts and Next Door on November 29 

E. Approve Yezman attending the CSDA Webinar Special Districts and Next Door on November 29 

F. Approve Bid Rejection for the Thickened Waste Activated Sludge (TWAS) Enclosure Rebid project 

G. Approve Application of Allocation for APN 179-173-07 11 Roosevelt Ave  Single Family Residence 
and Accessory Dwelling Unit 

H. Approve Application of Allocation for APN 180-281-34  Congregation Rodef Sholom 

I. Approve Resolution 2022-2285 B-110 Election of Officers, B-120 Duties of Board and Board 
Members and F-120 Customer Payment 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Items B through E. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through I. 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Board Policy B-130 Conflict of Interest and F-130 Disposal of Surplus Equipment and 

 Property - written 

3. Department Reports – Engineering - written 

4. Department Reports – Administration - written 

5. Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Report as of September 30, 2022 

 

 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:20 PM 

 

4:00 PM 

 

4:05 PM 

 

2

http://www.lgvsd.org/


November 3, 2022 Page 3 of 4 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 

 

4. AWARD OF CONTRACT TO ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES FOR A FLOOD 
PROTECTION PLAN PHASE 1 

Board to review and approve the award of contract to Environmental Science Associates (ESA) for a 
Flood Protection Plan Phase 1. 
 
 

 
5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2022 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,  

2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc committee, 2022 Human Resources Ad Hoc committee,   
Other Reports  

 
2. FORD 

a. NBWRA, Marin Special Districts Association, 2022  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee   
re: STPURWE, 2022 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,  
2022 Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  
Other Reports 
 

3. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCO, 2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee, Other Reports 
 

4. SCHRIEBMAN 
a. JPA Local Task Force, Gallinas Watershed Council, Other Reports 
 

5. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2022 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc Committee, Marin Special Districts, 
                          2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

6. BOARD REQUESTS: 

A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

            FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: NOVEMBER 20 AND DECEMBER 1, 2022 

 

 

6:05 PM 

 
 

6:00 PM 

 
 
 
 

6:10 PM 

 
 

5:45 PM 

 

5:30 PM 

 

3



November 3, 2022 Page 4 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, District Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before October 31, 2022 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  by Zoom November 3, 2022 at the District Office, located at 101 
Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: October 28, 2022 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
District Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

AGENDA APPROVED: Judy Schriebman, Board President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

4



 

 
 

 

11/3/2022 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\11032022\Admin Dept Report\_ASR Department Reports - Adminstration.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Dale McDonald 

  (415) 526-1519 dmcdonald@lgvsd.org
Mtg. Date: November 3, 2022 
Re: Department Report – Administration 
Item Type:  Consent  Action Information X Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Informational only. 

BACKGROUND  
Department Reports are given to the Board at regular intervals, usually quarterly.  This is an 
opportunity for the Managers to report to the Board actions taken within their respective 
Departments.  The previous Administration Department Report was given to the Board on August 
4, 2022.   

This Administration Department Report is for the period July 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022 and 
coincides with the Quarterly Financial Report.  

• Administration Department Report

• Pending Agenda Item Requests – Status Report

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

Item Number_______3.4_______ 
GM Review   _____CP_______ 

70



   Administration Department Report – July thru September 2022 10/20/2022 
   

 

 
Administration Department Report  Page 1 of 4 

FINANCE 

• Quarterly recycled water use thru September 30 billed to Marin Water in the amount 
of $64,784 and North Marin Water District in the amount of $16,085. The recoverable 
Operations & Maintenance expenses are 47% higher than last quarter due to improved 
recycled water timekeeping and more accurate recovery of chemical and power 
expenses.  

• GASB 68 Reporting for CalPERS Risk Pools for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 
completed by Bartel Associates, Inc. Information provided to auditor. Report is 
available upon request. 

• GASB 75 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Retiree Healthcare Plan Accounting 
Information report as of measurement date June 30, 2021 completed by Bartel 
Associates, Inc. Information provided to auditor. Report is available upon request. 

• Marin County provided Sewer Service Charges (SSC) assessments for placement on 
Property Tax rolls. Total assessments of $16,141,199 charged to 9,686 parcels. 

• Direct Billing for properties not assessed on the tax roll in progress. Estimate $900,000 
to be billed in October.  

• District’s financial audits for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 underway by  Nigro & Nigro. 
 

ADMINSTRATION 

• CSRMA Pooled Liability Insurance Application for 2023 submitted. The CSRMA Board of 
Directors approved increasing the minimum sewer backup deductible for all members 
from $10,000 to $25,000, effective December 31, 2022 (at program renewal). All other 
deductibles remain the same. 

• Biennial Conflict of Interest Notice provided to Marin County Deputy Clerk of the Board. 

• Enterprise System Catalog updated on District website on July 7, as required by SB 272. 

• Menon 491 Cedar Hill  - sewer backup claim from November 2020 – on-site inspection 
held with all parties on July 11. CSRMA managing claim, mediation pending. 

• Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) request to provide organizational, collection 
system, and treatment plant data from FY 19-20 and 20-21 for inclusion in Central 
Contra Costa Sanitary District’s (Central San) next statewide benchmarking survey 
completed. Survey results to be provided to participating agencies. 

• Records Retention program being reviewed. Draft schedule created by Gladwell 
Governmental Services to be brought to the Board later this year. 

• District Board Policy review continuing; B-70, B-80, B-90, F-70, F-80, and F-90 updated. 

• Resolutions of the Board drafted, approved, and processed. Of the seventeen 
resolutions adopted, three were for the above policy revisions. 

• A total of six regular Board meetings were held during this 3-month period. 

71



   Administration Department Report – July thru September 2022 10/20/2022 
   

 

 
Administration Department Report  Page 2 of 4 

• Sewer Lateral Inspection Program has fluctuated over the last three months along with 
home sales. The Administration Department provided support to the Collections 
Department on 127 inspection applications between July 1 and September 30. Of these 
39 were triggered by home sales and 19 initiated by construction permits. In addition, 
69 notification letters were mailed to property owners who have pulled building 
construction permits with the City of San Rafael or the County advising them of their 
requirement to have their sewer lateral inspected.  

  
• Sewer Lateral Replacement Program continues to be taken advantage of by 

homeowners requesting assistance with payment for their sewer replacement. A total 
of 112 properties are participating in the program as of September 30, a few 
applications are pending. The total reimbursement to be collected on the 2022-23 tax 
roll related to this program is $89,407. 

• Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program applications continue to trickle in. A total 
of eight applications have been received and six approved. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

• General Manager Curtis Paxton hired on August 8, 2022. 

• Patty Quinn hired as Civil Engineering Technician on July 25, 2022. 

• Recruitment for the open Collection System Operator position began September 2022. 

• CPS HR Consulting continues to provide Human Resource support to the District. 

a. Weekly meetings held with Cheri Fairchild, CPS HR Project Coordinator, to 
discuss ongoing HR issues. 

b. Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual to be updated in 2023 to incorporate 
new labor laws that will take effect January 1. 

c. On-site office hours held on September 28. 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept

Sewer Lateral Video Inspection Activity

Home Sales Construction Notification Letters

72



   Administration Department Report – July thru September 2022 10/20/2022 
   

 

 
Administration Department Report  Page 3 of 4 

• Labor Management Committee (LMC) met August 31. Discussions included multi-
certification qualifications and posting requirements, uniforms, alternative work 
schedules, and safety issues.  

SOLID WASTE and SB 1383 ORGANIC RECYCLING 
• Marin Franchisers Group, which includes Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, agreed to 

have R3 Consulting complete the review of Marin Sanitary Service’s (MSS) upcoming 
2023 Indexed Rate Application. The MSS 2023 Combined Services Area Rate Application 
was received on August 31, 2022 identifying the LGVSD rate revenue adjustment, an 
increase of 6.17% is proposed for 2023. The full report and public hearing on the 2023 
rate setting will be considered at a future date. 

• Meetings with CalRecycle and other Special Districts in Marin County held to discuss 
the voluntary compliance and enforcement requirements of SB 1383. Regional 
coordination being investigated.  

• Zero Waste Marin (ZWM) FY 22/23 Reimbursement Program grant cycle began on 
August 2, 2022. LGVSD was awarded $14,628. Grant funding will be used towards a 
joint Waste Characterization Study to provide information for required SB 1383 
Jurisdictional Reports. 

• 2021 CalRecycle Electronic Annual Report (EAR) submitted on September 22, 2022. 

• On August 18, 2022, the Board received an update on services being provided by MSS 
along with their 2021 Annual Report. There were questions raised during the 
presentation. Below are the answers and follow-up communication from MSS they 
wanted to share with the Board: 
1. MSS has noted the request to address the recyclability of glass and plan to 

include it in future communications. 
2. Aseptic packaging in Novato- They are accepting these in the blue cart and it 

appears they are being recovered. As stated, MSS is aware of programs in the 
area that would allow them to recover these as well, but currently they are 
limited by their facility design. As MSS improves the facility they will be 
addressing this material type to see if it is something they can begin to capture 
in their recovery streams. 

3. In the meeting, Justin Wilcock mentioned that they keep their plastics for 
recycling domestic in accord with the Geneva Convention. Fortunately, they are 
dealing with recyclables, not war, and what he meant to say was in following 
the Basel Convention. The Basel Convention is a different treaty, signed in a 
neighboring Swiss city that deals with the transportation of materials and seeks 
to avoid one country essentially shipping their trash to another under the guise 
of recycling. 

4. Invitation to September open house at the North Fork Biomass Gasification 
plant was provided to the Board under separate email. 

73



   Administration Department Report – July thru September 2022 10/20/2022 
   

 

 
Administration Department Report  Page 4 of 4 

CONTRACTS / REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Contracts executed between July 1 and September 30 listed below: 

Vendor Name Dept Description Date of 
Agreement 

Term End 
Date 

Contract  
Amount 

Du-All Safety 
Amendment 

200 Onsite Safety Consultant 
Services: contract extension of 
$56,736 for 22-23, 21-22 
contract was for $56,736 

7/19/2022 6/30/2023 $     56,736 

Nigro & Nigro 100 Professional Auditing Services 8/2/2022 1/31/2025 $      64,500 
Gladwell Governmental 
Services 

100 Records Management and 
Retention 

7/18/2022 8/31/2023 $      13,600 

Wastewater Solids 
Management Co. 

600 Secondary Anaerobic Digester 
Services: Amendment#1 
adding $53,000 to original 
amount of $96,690. 

7/15/2022 7/31/2022 $     53,000 

OTS 275 Electrical Instrumentation 
Technician: temporary 
contract assistance 

7/22/2022 10/31/2022 $      58,000 

Data Instincts 600 Public Outreach Services 8/29/2022 8/31/2023 $      59,250 
Chris DeGabriele 
Consulting 

100 Consulting 8/17/2022 8/8/2023 $      62,000 

West Yost All Cybersecurity Consulting 
Services 

8/29/2022 6/30/2023 $      36,433 

Caselle Software and 
Services 

100 Finance Enterprise Software 
Implementation - Amendment 
#1 extending term, contract 
amount remains unchanged at 
$51,600 

9/1/2022 6/30/2023 $      0 

Core Utilities 100 IT Support and Maintenance: 
Amendment #1 extending 
term thru 22-23, adding 
$39,600 to original amount of 
$40,000 authorized in 21-22. 

8/30/2022 9/1/2023 $      39,600 

 
Departments: -100 Admin, -125 Engineering, -200 Collections, -250 Maintenance, 
-300 Pump Stations, -400 Lab, -500 Reclamation, -600 Plant, -650 Recycled Water 

74



# Item Description Date Responsible Status / Notes

1 Grant Funding - Report on opportunities for grants 12/16/2021 MC Identify funding OCC

2 Public Use of Reclamation Area 1/6/2022 DM Revise Ordinance

3 Integrated Master Plan Heat Map - Report Update 2/17/2022 MC Provide w/Engrs Report

4 Cybersecurity Policy / Cybersecurity Implementation 4/7/2022 ML Ongoing review at plant

5 Establish Dedicated Fund for Operations Control Center 5/16/2022 DM Bring item to Board

6 Report on Flow Monitoring Hydraulic Study to Board 6/2/2022 MC Update Board

7 Electrical Vehicle Study 6/16/2022 CP Develop Scope of Work

8 Environmental Preferrable Purchasing Policy DM Develop

9 Real Property Administration - Property Acquisition MC/DM Develop

PENDING AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS

STATUS REPORT

Status Report Page 1 of 1 10/25/2022
75



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\11032022\Treasurer's Report\1_ASR 1st QTR Treasurer's Report September 2022.docx Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 

(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 3, 2022 
Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of September 30, 2022 
Item Type:  Consent  Action Information  X Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Information only 

BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10, Financial Reporting, and Board Policy F-70-120, Investment Reporting, 
require that a quarterly report be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 

TREASURER’S INVESTMENT REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July, 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff prepares a quarterly report on 
the District’s cash position, investments, and liquidity. 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, the 
reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 

The attached Treasurer’s Report presents the District’s bank and investment account balances as 
of September 30, 2022. Total Investments of $22,715,060 are held in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and in two restricted debt service accounts, which reflect a decrease of $409,232 
during the previous twelve-month period. 

Included with the Treasurer’s Report is the LAIF remittance advice from the State Controller’s 
Office which includes report on earnings ratio, interest rate, and current market value along with 
the Pooled Money Investment Account/LAIF Performance Report. The LAIF report for the quarter 
ending September 30, 2022 shows the interest rate of 1.35%, up from 0.75% in June, with 
quarterly interest earned of $74,209.20. 

The District is required to maintain cash in debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for 
the State Revolving Fund and for the loans from Bank of Marin. Quarterly Account Summary for 
the Bank of Marin Certificates of Deposit are included with this Treasurer’s Report 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 

Item Number___3.5___________ 
GM Review   ____CP________ 

76

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\11032022\Treasurer's Report\1_ASR 1st QTR Treasurer's Report September 2022.docx Page 2 of 4 

 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
District staff is required to provide a quarterly summary report that compares actual revenues and 
expenditures to budgeted amounts, including relevant information on debt proceeds and debt 
service payments. 
 
Cash Balance  
The District has $29,625,620 of cash and investments on hand as of September 30, 2022; a 
decrease of $5.8M from September 30, 2021 primarily due to construction expenditures related to 
the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) Project.  
 
Expenditures for the STPURWE project over the past year were primarily paid from the: 
 

1. California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank) Infrastructure State 
Revolving Fund (ISFR). The remaining balance of $567,760 will be deposited into the 
operating account once the Notice of Project Completion is filed. 

2. Capital Project Reserve Fund that holds Marin Water annual proportional debt-service and 
quarterly buy-in payments for STPURWE project. 

3. Operating Account for miscellaneous project related charges. 
 
The operating account balance fluctuates based on operating needs and it is not uncommon for 
the balance to change over the prior quarter or year.  In this quarter the operating account 
balance is higher than last year. 
 
Of the cash on hand, the District has designated portions of it for the following uses:  
 

• Reserves of $7,766,782 pursuant to District policies. 

• Connection fees of $646,934 which are available only to fund capacity related projects. 

• Debt service restricted reserve funds of $905,710 as required by loan covenants. 

• Accumulation of Marin Water buy-in and share of debt service for the STPURWE project of 
$173,745, balance continued to be drawn down and account converted over to Recycled 
Water Capital Reserves account in early 2023. 

• Special assessment funds for operation and maintenance of the pump stations at Captains 
Cove and Marin Lagoon of $1,499 and $15,984, respectively.  

• Accumulation of cash for the Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program of $388,304. 
 
There is $19.7M remaining after the designations noted above. The District has encumbered 
$12.6M for capital projects and services as of September 30, 2022. This leaves $7.1M in 
unrestricted funds as of September 30. 
 
Recent Board-approved encumbrances for biosolids support services and center pivot 
replacement project in the amount of $1.1M are not included in the encumbered amount above. 
 
 

77



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\11032022\Treasurer's Report\1_ASR 1st QTR Treasurer's Report September 2022.docx Page 3 of 4 

 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual Financial Statement 
Attached are the quarterly financial statements as of September 30, 2022, with highlights 
explaining significant variances and analysis below: 
 
Revenue 
The Marin County Treasurer collects the Sewer Service Charge (SSC) assessments and Property 
Tax levies on behalf of the District. The SSC, Property Tax revenue, and Supplemental 
Assessments reported to date are from the final 2021-22 Teeter True-Up received in July 2022. 
SSC and Property Tax levies for 2022-23 will be received in December 2022 and April 2023.  
 
Excess Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (ERAF) for 2021-22 were transferred from 
Marin County to the District in July 2022. ERAF funding for 2022-23 will be received in December 
and April 2023.  
 
Connection Fee revenue includes $186,648 invoiced to Talus, LLC in July. District ordinance 
provides for payment of the Connection Fee over a two-year period. 10% was paid within thirty 
days of Board approval.  40% of the Connection Fee is due this fiscal year.  The remaining 50% 
of the Connection Fee is due within 2 years, June 2, 2024, or upon date of building permit 
issuance, whichever comes first. 
 
Expenditures 
  

• Contract Personnel (#1005) – Operational Technical Services provided an Electrical 
Instrumentation Technician while recruitment was undertaken. Limited expenses for the 
remainder of the year are anticipated. 

  

• PERS (#1507) –CalPERS annual unfunded liability payment of $314,522 was paid in July 
and comprises the majority of PERS expenses this quarter. Based on bi-weekly CalPERS 
retirement contributions it is anticipated that a mid-year budget adjustment will be required 
to address a budget shortfall. 

 

• Workers Compensation (#1701) – pooled deposit of $106,073 based on forecasted salary 
expenses for 2022-23 was paid. Final premium audit for 2021-22 period is expected to be 
completed in December but anticipated credit may not be substantial enough to offset 
increased expenses this fiscal year. Mid-year budget adjustment is anticipated.  
 

• Hypochlorite (#2107) – chemical costs are slightly over budget as unit price has risen over 
last year. Mid-year budget adjustment is anticipated.  
 

• Utility Power (#2535) – the PG&E Net Energy Metering (NEM) annual True-Up 
reconciliation adjustment calculated in August resulted in the District paying $179,668. 
Electricity expenses will be lower once the solar panel system is brought back on-line. 

 

• Miscellaneous (#9999) – $56,700 was for Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims 
with California River Watch. 

 
Total Operating & Maintenance expenses for the first quarter is $4,376,093 which comprises 
27.37% of the annual budget. 
 
 

78



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\11032022\Treasurer's Report\1_ASR 1st QTR Treasurer's Report September 2022.docx Page 4 of 4 

 
Debt Proceeds and Service: 
The Bank of Marin 2012 Loan was paid off in August 2022. The remaining debt service payments 
are being paid according to schedule.  

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
See above. 
 
 
 

79



80



10/14/22, 9:25 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

 
 

BETTY T. YEE
 

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name
LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST

 

Account Number 70-21-005

As of 10/14/2022, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 09/30/2022.

Earnings Ratio .00003699565555327

Interest Rate 1.35%

Dollar Day Total $ 2,005,889,555.40

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 21,809,349.18

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 74,209.20

81



September 1.513
August 1.276

July 1.090
0.00003699565555327
0.980760962

 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2):
 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1):

PMIA Daily(1): 1.63%

1.35LAIF Apportionment Rate(2):

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 1.29%
304PMIA Average Life(1):

Treasuries
66.59%

Agencies
19.79%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

6.44%

Time 
Deposits

2.20%

Commercial
Paper
4.59%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.22%

Loans
0.17%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment 
pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public 
Utility Code 3288 (a). 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 10/14/22

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 09/30/22

Chart does not include $3,917,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.002%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

09/30/22
$222.9 billion

82

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


Account Number: 0003-715679
Statement Period: 06/30/22 - 09/30/22
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
5800 NORTHGATE MALL, SUITE #51
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-715679

Total Current Balance $603,392.27
Total Interest Year To Date $2,225.30

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
06/30 Beginning Balance $602,641.43
07/31 Interest 750.84 603,392.27
09/30 Ending Balance $603,392.27

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $603,392.27
Total Interest Year To Date $2,225.30
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00008417 00028674 0001 0001 BOMB1110100122064205 01

00008417 BOMB1110100122064205 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110000110100111100
101000110111010110101101
101111010110110000100000
101111010001010011001111
101100011001100000000100
101100000001000101100111
100011100100001011110010
110000001100101100010101
100010100000111010000010
101100011010001001101001
111010000100010001101010
100001000011011001010101
100101011000001100100000
100100111000000011000101
110001110001101011101110
110010000000111001011001
100000101011100011101000
101000111111010001000011
110000111101001111101100
101100001110010011111101
101001110110100010110010
111111111111111111111111

83



Account Number: 0003-716073
Statement Period: 06/30/22 - 09/30/22
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
5800 NORTHGATE MALL, SUITE #51
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-716073

Total Current Balance $302,318.06
Total Interest Year To Date $1,114.95

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
06/30 Beginning Balance $301,945.95
07/29 Interest 372.11 302,318.06
09/30 Ending Balance $302,318.06

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $302,318.06
Total Interest Year To Date $1,114.95
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00008421 00028682 0001 0001 BOMB1110100122064205 01

00008421 BOMB1110100122064205 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110000110100111100
101000110111010110101101
101111010110110000100000
101111010001010011001111
101100011011100000000100
101100000001000101101111
100011100100001011100010
110000001100101101001101
100010100000001011000010
101100010010100001111111
111010000101000110111000
100001010000011101111101
100101010101001101101000
100101000111101101001101
110001111001000110000010
110010101111011010011001
100001000000100100110100
101000111100100011010101
110000110000011101110000
100000010001010000011101
101001110100100010011010
111111111111111111111111

84



 7:27 AM
 10/25/22
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July through September 2022

Jul - Sep 22 Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Revenue/Expense

Income

9011 · Sewer Service Charge 86,713.57 16,910,508.00 0.51%

9880 · Recycled Water 80,771.26 172,000.00 46.96%

9022 · Permits and Inspection Fees 10,500.00 71,745.00 14.64%

9024 · Application Fees 1,750.00 3,775.00 46.36%

9101 · Private Sewer Lateral Program 548.25 79,300.00 0.69%

9773 · Miscellaneous Income 0.00 1,250.00 0.0%

9000 · Property Tax Revenue 5,682.76 1,262,092.00 0.45%

9040 · Supp. Assmnts - Property Tax 1,075.94 27,695.00 3.89%

9046 · ERAF 49,467.57 584,867.00 8.46%

9280 · HOPTR 0.00 4,453.00 0.0%

9021 · Franchise Revenue 40,637.22 169,776.00 23.94%

9010 · Federal and State Grants 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%

9023 · Connection Fees CapX 245,589.00 1,740,572.00 14.11%

9881 · MMWD Buy-in & Bond Share CapX 51,637.13 619,633.00 8.33%

9100 · Reimbursements 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

9200 · Interest Income

9210 · Bank Interest 1,231.98 2,640.00 46.67%

9206 · Interest Connection Fees CapX 222.13 964.00 23.04%

9204 · Interest on Bond Funds 0.00 7.00 0.0%
9209 · Interest - LAIF 40,754.94 68,100.00 59.85%

9201 · Interest on Reserves 1,190.73 0.00 100.0%

9211 · Interest PSL Program 94.26 0.00 100.0%

Total 9200 · Interest Income 43,494.04 71,711.00 60.65%

Total  Revenue 617,866.74 21,749,377.00 2.84%

Expense

1001 · Employee Costs

1001.1 · Salaries

1003 · Regular Staff Salaries 687,308.21 4,071,400.00 16.88%

1008 · Overtime 19,245.32 132,600.00 14.51%

1011 · Doubletime 1,398.04 33,100.00 4.22%

1010 · Stand By  (pre-2008 Sick Pay) 17,443.14 92,500.00 18.86%

1014 · Emergency Response Stipend 11,365.20 46,900.00 24.23%

1015 · Certification Stipends 21,687.08 84,000.00 25.82%

1016 · Longevity Pay 19,122.32 71,200.00 26.86%

1005 · Contract Personnel 25,800.00 5,200.00 496.15%

1036 · Director's Compensation 18,699.80 80,600.00 23.2%

Total 1001.1 · Salaries 822,069.11 4,617,500.00 17.8%

1001.2 · Employee Benefits

1901 · COVID Leave 12,484.30 1,000.00 1,248.43%

1009 · Vacation/Sick Accrual 0.00 64,000.00 0.0%

1037 · Directors Health Benefits 2,845.25 9,700.00 29.33%

85



 7:27 AM
 10/25/22
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July through September 2022

Jul - Sep 22 Budget % of Budget

1404 · Social Security Expense 58,172.79 287,100.00 20.26%

1502 · Group Life Insurance 3,107.06 8,700.00 35.71%

1506 · Pension Expense
1507 · PERS 437,757.72 787,500.00 55.59%

Total 1506 · Pension Expense 437,757.72 787,500.00 55.59%

1509 · Health Insurance

1509.1 · Health Insurance-Actives 124,588.92 509,200.00 24.47%

1509.3 · Health Insurance-Admin Fee 549.59 1,700.00 32.33%

1509.2 · Health Insurance-Retirees 26,119.36 112,900.00 23.14%

1509.4 · Health Insurance-OPEB Pre-fund 34,890.00 163,200.00 21.38%

Total 1509 · Health Insurance 186,147.87 787,000.00 23.65%

1510 · Dental Insurance 8,849.27 16,500.00 53.63%

1514 · Vision Services 1,532.31 3,300.00 46.43%

1516 · Long Term Disability 9,005.24 34,100.00 26.41%

2006 · Auto Allowance 1,893.30 16,800.00 11.27%

Total 1001.2 · Employee Benefits 721,795.11 2,015,700.00 35.81%

1006 · Payroll Processing Fees 6,010.30 24,900.00 24.14%

Total 1001 · Employee Costs 1,549,874.52 6,658,100.00 23.28%

2059 · Insurance

1701 · Workers Comp Insurance 108,307.00 72,900.00 148.57%

2060 · Fire, General Casualty & Liab 129,476.49 230,000.00 56.29%

2061 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 1,100.00 0.0%

Total 2059 · Insurance 237,783.49 304,000.00 78.22%

2080 · Repairs and Maintenance

2083 · Vehicle Parts & Repairs 8,332.02 31,600.00 26.37%

2096 · Building Maintenance 3,950.09 96,300.00 4.1%

2097 · Grounds Maintenance 18,785.81 109,300.00 17.19%

2538 · Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 226.68 32,800.00 0.69%

2365 · Equipment Maint 16,831.56 81,500.00 20.65%

2366 · Equipment Repair 67,460.07 174,900.00 38.57%

2367 · Capital Replacement 98,855.45 322,400.00 30.66%

Total 2080 · Repairs and Maintenance 214,441.68 848,800.00 25.26%

2331 · Reclamation Expenses

2335 · Marsh Pond Vegitation Removal 0.00 60,000.00 0.0%

2332 · General - Reclamation expenses 0.00 9,500.00 0.0%

2333 · Pasture Disk 59,462.50 123,900.00 47.99%

2334 · Sludge Inject 102,650.00 102,700.00 99.95%

Total 2331 · Reclamation Expenses 162,112.50 296,100.00 54.75%

2101 · Chemicals and Lab Supplies

2107 · Hypochlorite 73,314.33 206,900.00 35.44%

2110 · Bisulfite 0.00 85,400.00 0.0%

2109 · Miscellaneous Chemicals 4,800.40 73,100.00 6.57%

2115 · Laboratory Supplies 15,764.52 23,900.00 65.96%

Total 2101 · Chemicals and Lab Supplies 93,879.25 389,300.00 24.12%

86



 7:27 AM
 10/25/22
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July through September 2022

Jul - Sep 22 Budget % of Budget

2111 · Pollution Prevention

2119 · Pollution Prevention Contract 1,929.71 11,700.00 16.49%

2111 · Pollution Prevention - Other 0.00 4,900.00 0.0%

Total 2111 · Pollution Prevention 1,929.71 16,600.00 11.63%

2117 · Lab Contract Services 4,972.70 54,400.00 9.14%

2249 · Small Tools 4,991.57 24,600.00 20.29%

2320 · Outside Services

2321 · Personnel & HR Services 19,158.86 160,600.00 11.93%

2322 · General 11,682.12 22,000.00 53.1%

2323 · Labor Relations 8,196.17 16,400.00 49.98%

2324 · Janitorial 5,318.98 22,500.00 23.64%

2326 · Other Outside Services 19,527.25 111,700.00 17.48%

2327 · Uniform Maintenance 4,163.97 13,600.00 30.62%

2360 · Other Consultants 32,460.70 198,700.00 16.34%

Total 2320 · Outside Services 100,508.05 545,500.00 18.43%

2330 · Damage Claims 0.00 20,000.00 0.0%

2356 · Engineering

2354 · SCADA Engineering Support 0.00 67,200.00 0.0%

2355 · Passthru 426.00 1,200.00 35.5%

2357 · Environmental 22,994.50 186,400.00 12.34%

2358 · General Small Projects 243.00 14,700.00 1.65%

2359 · Feasibility Studies 0.00 91,600.00 0.0%

Total 2356 · Engineering 23,663.50 361,100.00 6.55%

2362 · General Operating Supplies 6,545.09 61,400.00 10.66%

2530 · Utilities

2533 · Internet Services 2,576.60 7,800.00 33.03%

2534 · Contract Telephone 7,857.46 49,600.00 15.84%

2535 · Utility Power 271,027.57 476,100.00 56.93%

2536 · Water 6,928.90 33,900.00 20.44%

Total 2530 · Utilities 288,390.53 567,400.00 50.83%

2501 · Fuels

2502 · Diesel 4,600.44 14,400.00 31.95%

2503 · Propane 104.29 8,500.00 1.23%

2504 · Vehicle Gas 6,947.17 12,700.00 54.7%

2505 · Vehicle Natural Gas 1,005.07 4,200.00 23.93%

2506 · Oil (vehicle and drum product) 425.43 3,200.00 13.3%

Total 2501 · Fuels 13,082.40 43,000.00 30.42%

2389 · Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 32,096.33 49,000.00 65.5%

2397 · Safety Contractor Services 14,184.00 57,400.00 24.71%

2801 · Lateral Rehab Assistance Prog 0.00 59,800.00 0.0%

2802 · Low-Income Sewer  Rate Ast Prog 0.00 50,000.00 0.0%

2400 · General and Administrative

2499 · COVID-19 Expenses 0.00 1,700.00 0.0%

2129 · Election Expenses 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

87



 7:27 AM
 10/25/22
 Accrual Basis

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July through September 2022

Jul - Sep 22 Budget % of Budget

2133 · Office Supplies & Expense 11,569.19 42,800.00 27.03%

2134 - Meeting Supplies & Expen 850.69 2,100.00 40.51%

2135 · Bank Charges 0.00 200.00 0.0%

2137 · Donations - Prop 218 Compliant 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

2221 · Publications & Legal Ads 3,939.06 12,800.00 30.77%

2223 · Public Education 24,297.72 74,700.00 32.53%

2246 · Rents & Leases - Office & Equip 28,321.62 192,700.00 14.7%

2264 · Taxes, Other 0.00 1,900.00 0.0%

2272 · Memberships 13,478.62 69,100.00 19.51%

2363 · Permits and Fees 21,860.43 119,300.00 18.32%

2477 · Conferences 10,777.39 52,600.00 20.49%

2479 · Mileage & Travel 25.00 4,600.00 0.54%

2713 · Legal 25,452.50 186,600.00 13.64%

2716 · Computer Software & Services 35,495.14 97,600.00 36.37%

2717 · Audit 10,000.00 27,200.00 36.77%

2718 · Financial Services 449.00 35,400.00 1.27%

9778 · User Chg / Collection Fee Exp. 0.00 36,900.00 0.0%

9786 · Employee Recognition 3,907.38 5,600.00 69.78%

9787 · Employee Education & Training 5,553.00 49,400.00 11.24%

9999 · Miscellaneous expense 56,700.01 4,200.00 1,350.0%

Total 2400 · General and Administrative 252,676.75 1,052,400.00 24.01%

9800 · Debt Service

9810 · Principal Payments

9811 · 2004 COP/Refunded Principal 0.00 630,000.00 0.0%

9812 · IBank Principal 359,654.11 359,654.00 100.0%

9813 · State Revolving Fund Loan Princ 0.00 218,699.00 0.0%

9814 · 2011Bank of Marin Loan Principa 78,173.74 237,888.00 32.86%

9815 · 2012Bank of Marin Loan Principa 39,064.29 39,064.00 100.0%

9816 · 2017 Revenue Bonds Principal 0.00 1,110,000.00 0.0%

Total 9810 · Principal Payments 476,892.14 2,595,305.00 18.38%

9820 · Interest Payments

9821 · 2004 COP/Refunded Interest 0.00 78,665.00 0.0%

9822 · IBank Loan Interest 164,740.18 324,086.00 50.83%

9823 · State Revolving Fund Loan Inter 0.00 66,765.00 0.0%

9824 · 2011Bank of Marin Loan Interest 32,720.06 94,794.00 34.52%

9825 · 2012Bank of Marin Loan Interest 160.56 160.00 100.35%

9826 · 2017 Revenue Bonds Interest 667,500.00 1,335,000.00 50.0%

Total 9820 · Interest Payments 865,120.80 1,899,470.00 45.55%

9830 · Loan Annual Fees - IBank 32,948.03 32,948.00 100.0%

Total 9800 · Debt Service 1,374,960.97 4,527,723.00 30.37%

Total Expense 4,376,093.04 15,986,623.00 27.37%

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109


	Agenda 11032022
	1 Public Comment
	2A Minutes 10202022
	2B Draft Warrant List 11032022
	2C Murray Meeting request
	2D Murray CSDA Webinar request
	2E Yezman CSDA Webinar request
	2F TWAS Bid rejection
	2G  Appication of Allocation 11 Roosevelt Ave
	2H Application of Allocation Congregation Rodef Sholom
	2I Resolution 2022-2285 B-110 B-120 F-120
	3.1 General Manager's Report
	3.2 B-130 Conflict of Interest F-130 Disposal of Surplus
	3.3 Engineering Department Report
	3.4 Admin Department Report
	_ASR Department Reports - Adminstration
	Administration Monthly Report 2022 09_July_Sept
	Pending Agenda Items Requests - Status Report for 11-3-2022
	Board Agenda Requests


	3.5 Quarterly Financial Report as of September 30, 2022
	1_ASR 1st QTR Treasurer's Report September 2022
	2_1st QTR Treasurers Report Sept 2022 signed
	3_Qtrly Interest Sept 2022- LAIF Operating 70-21-005
	4_pmia-laif_perform September 2022
	5_715679 - Jumbo Funds Sept 2022
	6_716073 - Jumbo Funds Sept 2022
	7_P&L Budget vs  Actuals Sept 2022
	Sheet1


	4 Award of Contract Flood Protection Plan
	5 Board Reports
	6A Board Meeting Attend Requests
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



